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MARSHALLTON FRIENDS MEETINGHOUSE
{Bradford Priends Meetinghouse) ;

Location: East side of Northbrook Road (IR 15077), .1 mile
south of State Roéute 162 (Strasburg Road),
Marshallton (West Bradford Township), Chester
County, Pennsylvania.

Presgsent Owner: Marshallton Friends Meeting, Miss Anna Embree,
Clerk, West Chester R.D. #l4, Pennsylvania.

Statement of

Significance: This is a fine example of an eighteenth century
Friends meetinghcuse still in use and relatively
unchanged retaining many fine original interior
features.

PART T. HISTCRICAL INFORMATION

A. Phyeical History:

1. Original and subsequent owners: Marshallton Friends Meeting.
Miss Anna Embree, Clerk, West Chester R.D. #U4, Pennsylvania.

2. Date of erection: 1765.
3. Architect, builder, suppliers: Unknown.

4. Original plans, construction: The meetinghouse consists of
one room with the usual sliding partitions to separate the
men's and women's business meetings. An usual variastion to
this general plan is the addition of a second set of sliding
partitions at right angles to the other partitions, with
space for two rows of pews bhetween this partition and the
south wall. Locally it has been supposed that this area was
intended for slaves. But in 1761, even before the building's
conttruction, the Scciety of Friends had been unfavorably
dealing with slave owning members. It seems doubtful that
this unique section was built for slaves since the tax
records for 1780 list no slaves in the township. Perhaps
this unusal partition was only to allow for a small committee
room for private meetings.

5. Alterations and additions: There have been few alterations.
In March of 1788 the roof caught fire and had to e .replaced.
The interior was not damaged too much, but evidence
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of the fire can still be seen. The roof was replaced again
after a firée in 1883. The original pent eaves were replaced-
by & porch added on the south and west elevations in the late
nineteenth century. The pedimented hood over the south (front)
entrance was alsc removed when the porch was built.

Important old views and references:

Views: In the Chester County Historlcal Society, West
Chester, Pennsylvania, is a daguerreotype of the meetinghouse
with the pent eaves on it in excellent condition. There is
also a large collection of photographs from the last quarter
of the nineteenth century onwards in the same place.

References: Sources of information, all +to be found in The
Chester County Historical Society, West Chester, unless-
otherwise noted. . :

J. Smith Puthey and Gilbert Cope, History of Chester
County, Pemnsylvania, Louis H. Everts, Philadelphias, 1881.

Classified printing and manuscript files at Chester
County Historical Society, West Chester, Pennsylvania, under
heading West Bradford Township Churches - SQOCIETY OF FERENDS.

B.:Historical Events Connected with the Structure:

The

first meetinghouse was built in 1726, but on & different

site. The second was built shortly after 1729 on the present

tract. When the present meetinghouse - was built in 1765, the old

one was moved to the farm of Abraham Marshall and used as a barn
or stable for years. The 1765 structure is still an active
meetinghouse.
Prepared by Bart Anderson
" Curator, Chester County
Historical Society
July 1959
PART II. ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION ' .

4. General Statement:

1.

Architectural character: This is'a fine exanmple of an
eighteenth century Friends meetinghouse still in use and
relatively unchanged retaining many fine original interior
features.
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2. Condition of fabrie: Good.
B. Dascription of Exterior:

1. Over-all dimensions: The structure 1s'approx1mately 38!
(three-bay front) by 45! (three bays); it is one-and-a-half
stories.

2. Foundations: -Stone.
3. Wall contruction: Random rubhble.

4. 7Porches, stoops, bulkheads: A shed-roof porch extends across
the mouth and west elevations. This poreh replaced the
original pent eaves and pedimented hood over the south
entrance when it was added in the nineteenth century (some~
time after 1850).

5. Chimneys: There is a brick chimney located on the ridge at
the center of the roof.

6. Openings:

a. Doorways and doors: The south (front) entrance has a
double paneled door. ' The interior sliding partition
extends to the south entrance allowing the men and women
t0 enter directly into theilr own sections. The interior
side of the doors have diagonal boards. The east door is
also a double paneled door with diagonal hoards on the
interior. The west door is a single paneled qoor with
two lights cut into the upper panels.

b. Windows and shutters: Two windows, each flanking an
entrance, appear on each elevation {south, east and
west). - They are six-over-six-light double-hung wooden
sasgh wlndows All the shutters have three panels on each

¥ side.

T. Roof:
a. Shape, covering: Gable roof with wooden shingles. The

roof was repaced after two fires, one in 1788 and again
in 1883.
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b. Cornice, eaves: The pent eaves were replaced by a porch
in the nineteenth century.

¢. Dormers: None.

€. Description of Interior:

1.

Floor plans: One room divided by two sets of sliding
partibions.

Stairways: NOne.

Flooring: The original wooden floor boards remain.

Wall and.ceiling finish: Plaster.

Doorﬁays and doors: 5liding wooden partitions.

Trim: Very little trim except the paneled partitions.
Hardware: There are écme large wooden pegs, but mostly
wrought iron nails and hinges were used. Snibell hinges were
used for the dcors.

Lighting: None.

Heating: No modern heating system is present; there is a
stove with a central chimney.

D. Site:

1.

Ge@eral setting and orientation: The meetinghouse faces
south and is set back from the road. It is surrounded by
large areas of grass with a graveyard to the east.

Enclosures: The graveyard dates from the late eighteenth
century. It is surrounded by a stone well of the smme type
of fieldstone used for the meetinghouse.

Outbuildings: HNone now; the sheds have been demolished.

Walks, driveways: There is a dirt driveway which connects
the meetinghouse with Route 162.
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5. Landscapirg, gardens: There are many trees and shrubs within
the graveyard as well as surrounding the meetinghouse.

Prepared by Bart Anderson
Curator, Chester County
Historical Society
July 1958



